# Annual Reports of the town of ROXBURY New Hampshire 1996

FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1996

Digitized by the Internet Archive in 2010 with funding from Boston Library Consortium Member Libraries

http://www.archive.org/details/annualreportsoft1996roxb

# TOWN OF ROXBURY, NH

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Town Officers	3
Warrant	4
Budget	6
Sources of Revenue	7
Assets & Liabilities	7
Receipts	8
Expenditures	8
Report of Selectmen	0
Schedule of Town Property	0
Tax Collector's Report	1
Uncollected Taxes December 31, 1996	2
Town Clerk's Report	3
Planning Board Report	4
Roxbury Board of Adjustment	4
Town Auditor's Report	4
Town Treasurer's Report	15
Report of Town Forest Fire Warden and State Forest Ranger	17
Police Department Report	8
Report of Road Agent	20
Report of School Board Representative	20
Report of Health Officer	20
Vital Statistics	21
Annual Town Meeting	22
Special Town Meeting	25
Valuations and Property Taxes - Residents	26
Valuations and Property Taxes - Non-Residents	30

# **TOWN OFFICERS**

#### MODERATOR Glenn White

**SELECTMEN & ASSESSORS** David Gregory, '98 Fred White, '99 Peter Stuhlsatz, '97

TOWN CLERK Marika Stuhlsatz

**TOWN TREASURER** Don Black

TAX COLLECTOR Marika Stuhlsatz

> **ROAD AGENT** Steve Yardley

**OVERSEER OF THE POOR** Peter Stuhlsatz

> AUDITOR Mary Ann Kristiansen

SUPERVISORS OF THE CHECKLIST Barbara Neylan Marcia Robidoux Donald Black

> **CONSTABLE** Neal Collier

**TRUSTEE OF THE TRUST FUNDS** Jennifer Gregory

> **HEALTH OFFICER** Glenn White

**TOWN HALL CUSTODIAN** Sean Garrison

# SEXTON

Steve Yardley

FIRE CHIEF Richard Donohue



## THE POLLS WILL BE OPEN FROM 6:30 PM TO 7:30 PM

To the Inhabitants of the Town of **Roxbury**, N.H. in the County of **Cheshire** in said State, qualified to vote in Town Affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at **The Roxbury Meeting House** in said **Town** on Tuesday, the **Eleventh (11th)** day of March, next at **7:00** of the clock in the forenoon, to act upon the following subjects:

- 1. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing year.
- 2. To raise such sums of money as may be necessary to defray town charges for the ensuing year and make appropriations of the same. Appropriations: \$17,200.00
- 3. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$9,800.00 for salaries and expenses of the Police Department.
- 4. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$250.00 for Town Welfare and emergency assistance to the Town Poor.
- 5. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$600.00 for expenses and maintenance of the Fire Department.
- 6. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$300.00 for upkeep of the cemeteries.
- 7. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in anticipation of taxes and will vote to raise the sum of \$3,000.00 for interest expense.
- 8. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$100.00 for a contingency fund.
- 9. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$20,000.00 for summer and winter road maintenance.
- 10. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$262.00 to support the Mental Health Service Program of Monadnock Family and Mental Health Service.
- 11. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$24,065.96 for highway construction and reconstruction. SELECTMAN'S COMMENT: These funds for expenditure are designated to the Town through the Highway Block Grant Fund. The appropriation does not affect your tax rate, but to be properly expended a vote is required.
- 12. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$300.00 as the Town's planning expenses and it's share of expenses for the operation of the Southwestern New Hampshire Planning Commission. These funds may be used for financing the staff, operation expenses, planning, studies, technical assistance and other programs of the commission. These funds may be used in conjunction with other State and Federal Funds available for planning purposes.

- 13. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$12,480.00 to be paid for recycling center privileges in the Town of Marlborough. SELECTMAN'S COMMENT: This charge is based on our use of the recycling center and the cost to maintain it.
- 14. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,500.00, as it's fair share of standby costs for the use of the City of Keene's ambulance service.
- 15. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$5,000.00 to added to the Road Improvement Capital Reserve Fund previously established. The Selectmen recommend this 'appropriation.
- 16. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$200.00 to support the meals program of The Community Kitchen, Inc.
- 17. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$175.00 to support the Southwestern Community Services. SELECTMAN'S COMMENT: This amount represents 2% of the funds provided by S.W.C.S. to residents of Roxbury.
- 18. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$250.00 to support the Home Health Care & Community Services.
- 19. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$3,000.00 for the purchase of computer equipment for use by town officials.
- 20. "Shall we modify the elderly exemptions from property tax in the Town of Roxbury, based on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers, to be as follows: for a person 65 years of age up to 75 years, \$10,000; for a person 75 years of age up to 79 years, \$15,000; for a person 80 years of age and older, \$20,000? To qualify, a person must have been a New Hampshire resident for at least 5 years, own the real estate individually or jointly, or if the real estate is owned by such person's spouse, they must have been married for at least 5 years. In addition, the taxpayer must have a net income of not more than \$13,400 or, if married, a combined net income of less than \$20,400; and own net assets not in excess of \$35,000 excluding the person's residence." (Ballot vote)
- 21. To transact any other business which may come before the said meeting.

Given under our hands and seal, this 24th day of February, in the year of our Lord nineteen hundred and ninety seven.

Peter Stuhlsatz Fred White David Gregory Selectmen of The Town of Roxbury

Peter Stuhlsatz Fred White David Gregory Selectmen of The Town of Roxbury

A true copy of Warrant--Attest:

# TOWN OF ROXBURY January 1, 1996 to December 31, 1996

# BUDGET

20202	<u>^</u>		Appropriations
		Actual	Ensuing Fiscal
Purpose of Appropriation	Appropriations 1996	Expenditures 1996	Year 1997
GENERAL GOVERNMENT			
Town Officer's Salaries (Art. #2)	\$7,000.00	\$7,668.34	\$7,500.00
Election, Registration & Vital Statistics (Art. #2)	\$750.00	\$260.00	\$250.00
Town Officers' Expenses (Art. #2)	\$2,750.00	\$3,356.88	\$3,500.00
Legal Expenses (Art. #2)	\$3,000.00	\$340.10	\$1,000.00
Planning and Zoning (Art. #12)	\$300.00	\$288.00	\$300.00
Advertising and Regional Associations (Art. #2)	\$500.00	\$529.31	\$500.00
General Government Building (Art. #2)	\$2,000.00	\$4,374.06	\$2,500.00
Cemeteries (Art. #6)	\$300.00	\$180.00	\$300.00
Insurance (Art. #2)	\$5,000.00	\$6,888.12	\$1,950.00
Contingency Fund (Art. #8)	\$100.00	\$0.00	\$100.00
PUBLIC SAFETY			
Police (Art. #3)	\$6,000.00	\$7,781.63	\$9,800.00
Ambulance (Art. #14)	\$1,500.00	\$918.56	\$1,500.00
Fire (Art. #5)	\$600.00	\$811.12	\$600.00
Purchase of ATV for Fire Dept			
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS			
Highways and Streets (Art. #9)	\$18,000.00	\$19,866.72	\$20,000.00
Highway Block Grant (Art. #11)	\$21,968.57	\$21,968.57	\$24,065.96
SANITATION			
Solid Waste Disposal (Art. #13)	\$11,390.00	\$11,390.00	\$12,480.00
HEALTH			
Health Department - Mental Health (Art. #10)	\$262.00	\$248.00	\$262.00
WELFARE			
Direct Assistance (Art. #4)	\$250.00	\$0.00	\$250.00
Community Kitchen (Art. #16)	\$428.00	\$428.00	\$200.00
South Wetern Community Services (Art. #17)	\$175.00	\$175.00	\$175.00
Home Health Care and Community Services (Art. #18)	\$250.00	\$250.00	\$250.00
DEBT SERVICE			
Interest on TAN (Art. #7)	\$2,000.00	\$2,788.75	\$3,000.00
CAPITAL OUTLAY			
Machinery, Vehicles & Equipment (ATV for Fire Dept)	\$6,000.00	\$5,500.00	\$0.00
Machinery, Vchicles & Equipment (Computer)(Art. #19)			\$3,000.00
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT			
To Capital Reserve Fund (Art. #15)	\$5,000.00	\$5,000.00	\$5,000.00
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS	\$95,523.57	\$101,011.16	\$98,482.96

	Estimated Revenue	Actual Revenue	Estimated Revenue
Sources of Revenue	1996	1996	1997
TAXES			
Yield Taxes	\$0.00	\$8,067.44	\$7,500.00
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (Not in Total)	(\$45,000.00)	(\$22,350.40)	(\$22,350.40)
Interest & Penalties on Deliquent Taxes	\$2,500.00	\$3,089.00	\$2,500.00
LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES			
Business Licenses and Permits	\$200.00	\$30.00	\$50.00
Motor Vehicle Permit Fees	\$19,000.00	\$18,343.00	\$18,000.00
Building Permits	\$200.00	\$160.00	\$150.00
Other Licenses, Permits & Fees	\$100.00	\$595.00	\$500.00
FROM STATE			
Shared Revenue	\$2,500.00	\$7,028.12	\$7,500.00
Highway Block Grant	\$21,968.57	\$21,968.57	\$24,065.96
Flood Control Reimbursement	\$4,128.00	\$10,649.02	\$4,128.00
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES			
Municipal Propery Rental	\$400.00	\$195.00	\$250.00
Interest on Investments	\$1,000.00	\$1,044.20	\$1,000.00
Other Miscellaneous Sources Not Otherwise Classified	\$700.00	\$2,022.28	\$750.00
TOTAL REVENUES & CREDITS	\$52,696.57	\$73,191.63	\$66,393.96
ASSE	rs		
	Beginning of Year		End of Year
Cash on Hand 12/31/96	\$27,282.66		\$117,534.59
Accounts Receivable			
Taxes Receivable	\$27,954.00		\$45,720.00
Tax Liens 1990	\$2,090.60		\$2,090.60
Tax Liens 1993	\$1,156.00		\$413.00
Tax Liens 1994	\$10,667.00		\$8,141.00
Tax Liens 1995	\$0.00		\$8,080.00
Other Current Assets			
Capital Reserve Fund (For Road Improvements) Certificate of Deposit	\$0.00		\$5,009.00
Passbook	\$695.00		\$735.60
NHDIP	\$100,701.10		\$1,695.70
TOTAL ASSETS	\$170,546.36		\$189,419.49
LIABILI	TIES		
Current Liabilities			
Due to School District	\$166,922.29		\$185,774.36
TOTAL LIABILITIES	\$166,922.29		\$185,774.36
Fund Equity			
Reserve for Special Purposes	\$0.00		\$0.00
Unreserved Fund Balance	\$3,624.07		\$3,673.24
TOTAL FUND EQUITY	\$3,624.07		\$3,673.24
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY	\$170,546.36		\$189,447.60
FIXED ASSET GROU	P OF ACCOUNTS		
Land and Improvements	\$97,000.00		\$97,000.00
Fire Department Buildings	\$10,000.00		\$10,000.00
Machinery, Vehicles & Equipment	\$4,400.00		\$9,000.00
Furniture & Equipment	\$7,400.00		\$7,400.00
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS	\$118,800.00		\$123,400.00

and the second sec

#### RECEIPTS

GENERAL FUND - REVENUES		
Property Taxes 1996	\$266,050.53	
Property Taxes 1995	\$28,954.00	
Yield Taxes	\$8,067.44	
Payment in Lieu of Taxes	\$22,350.40	
Other Taxes (Payments on Liens)	\$9,090.00	
Interest & Penalties on Delinquent Taxes	\$3,089.00	
Total		\$337,601.37
Business Licenses and Permits	\$30.00	
Motor Vehicle Permit Fees	\$18,343.00	
Building Permits	\$160.00	
Other Licenses, Permits & Fees	\$595.00	
Total		\$19,128.00
Revenue from the State of New Hampshire		
Shared Revenue	\$7,028.12	
Highway Block Grant	\$21,968.57	
Flood Control Reimbursement	\$10,649.02	
Total		\$39,645.71
Revenue from Miscellaneous Sources		
Rents of Property	\$195.00	
Interest on Investments	\$1,044.20	
Other Miscellaneous Sources Not Otherwise Classified	\$2,022.28	
Total		\$3,261.48
TOTAL REVENUES FROM ALL SOURCES		\$399,636.56

#### **EXPENDITURES**

GENERAL GOVERNMENT		
Town Officer's Salaries	\$7,668.34	
Election, Registration & Vital Statistics	\$260.00	
Town Officers' Expenses	\$3,356.88	
Legal Expenses	\$340.10	
Planning and Zoning	\$288.00	
Advertising and Regional Associations	\$529.31	
General Government Building	\$4,374.06	
Cemeteries	\$180.00	
Insurance Not Otherwise Allocated	\$6,888.12	
Total	- ,	\$23,884.81
, or all a second se		
PUBLIC SAFETY		
Police	\$7,781.63	
Ambulance	\$918.56	
Fire	\$811.12	
Purchase of ATV for Fire Dept	\$5,500.00	
	·	
Total		\$15,011.31
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS		
Highways and Streets	\$41,835.29	
Total		\$41,835.29
SANITATION		
Solid Waste Disposal	\$11,390.00	
Total		\$11,390.00
HEALTH		
Health Department - Mental Health	\$248.00	
Total		\$248.00
WELFARE		
Direct Assistance	\$0.00	
Community Kitchen	\$428.00	
South Western Community Services	\$175.00	
Home Health Care and Community Services	\$250.00	
Total		\$853.00
DEBT SERVICE		
Interest on Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes	\$2,788.75	
Total		\$2,788.75
OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT		
To Capital Reserve Fund	\$5,000.00	
Total		\$5,000.00
PAYMENTS TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS		
	\$31,495.50	
Taxes Paid to County	\$31,495.50 \$13,901.00	
Taxes Paid to County Taxes Bought		
Taxes Paid to County	\$13,901.00	\$300,621.43
Taxes Paid to County Taxes Bought Taxes Paid to School Districts	\$13,901.00	\$300,621.43
Taxes Paid to County Taxes Bought Taxes Paid to School Districts	\$13,901.00	\$300,621.43 \$401,632.59

#### **REPORT OF SELECTMEN**

ADDODDIATIONS		
APPROPRIATIONS	\$20,500.00	
Town Tax	\$18,000.00	
Winter & Summer Maintenance	\$6,000.00	
Police Department	\$600.00	
Fire Department	\$300.00	
Planning & Zoning	\$500.00	
Advertising and Regional Associations	\$100.00	
Contingency Fund Monadnock Mental Health	\$262.00	
	\$428,00	
Community Kitchen	\$175.00	
South Western Community Services	\$250.00	
Home Health Care & Community Services	\$250.00	
Town Welfare	\$300.00	
Cemeteries	\$11,390.00	
Recycling Center & District Fees	\$1,500.00	
Ambulance Service	\$21,968.57	
Highway Block Grant	\$2,000.00	
Interest		
Capital Reserve Fund	\$5,000.00	
Purchase of ATV	\$6,000.00	
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS		\$95,523.57
County Tax	\$31,495.50	
School Tax	\$255,224.93	
TOTAL TOWN, COUNTY & SCHOOL TAX		\$382,244.00
Less Estimated Income (Includes City of Keene		\$136,452.71
in Lieu of Taxes)		
TOTAL TOWN, COUNTY & SCHOOL TAX		\$245,791.29
Overlay		\$0.00
Less: War Service Credit		\$800.00
AMOUNT TO BE RAISED		\$246,591.29
TAXES COMMITTED TO TAX COLLECTOR		,
Property Taxes	\$312,065.00	
Tax Rate: \$25.62 per \$1,000.00 at 122% Estimat	,	
VALUATIONS	<b></b>	
Power Lines	\$103,587.00	
Land and Buildings	\$12,163,451.00	
TOTAL		\$12,267,038.00
Less Elderly Exemptions		\$70,000.00
TOTAL NET VALUATIONS (Excluding City of Keene)		\$12,197,038.00
SCHEDULE OF TOWN P	ROPERTY	
As of December 31, 19		
FIXED ASSET GROUP OF ACCOUNTS		607 000 00
Land and Improvements (Town Hall & L&B)		\$97,000.00
Fire Department L&B		\$10,000.00
Machinery, Vehicles & Equipment		\$9,000.00
Furniture & Equipment		\$7,400.00

TOTAL

\$123,400.00



# TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 1996

	1996	1995
Remitted to Treasurer During Fiscal Year		
Property Taxes	\$266,050.53	\$28,954.00
Yield Taxes	\$8,067.44	\$0.00
Interest	\$36.40	\$2,359.60
Yield Interest	\$4.00	\$0.00
Abatements Made		
Property Taxes	\$289.00	
Refunds	\$5.47	
Uncollected Taxes End of Fiscal Year		
Property Taxes	\$45,720.00	\$0.00
Yield Taxes	\$0.00	\$0.00
Total Credits	\$320,172.84	<b>\$31,313.60</b>
Uncollected Taxes Beginning of Fiscal Year		
Property Taxes		\$28,954.00
Yield Taxes		\$0.00
Taxes Committed This Year		
Property Taxes	\$312,065.00	\$0.00
Yield Taxes	\$8,067.44	\$0.00
Overpayment		
Property Taxes		
Interest Collected on Delinquent Taxes	\$40.40	\$2,359.60
Total Debits	\$320,172.84	\$31,313.60

# Summary of Tax Lien Accounts

	1995	1994	1993	1990
Balance Unredeemed Taxes of Fiscal Year		\$10,667.00	\$1,156.00	\$2,090.60
Liens Executed During Fiscal Year	\$13,901.00			
Interest Collected After Lien Execution	\$263.00	\$184.00	\$242.00	\$0.00
Total Debits	\$14,164.00	\$10,851.00	\$1,398.00	\$2,090.60
Redemptions	\$5,821.00	\$2,526.00	\$743.00	\$0.00
Interest & Cost After Lien Execution	\$263.00	\$184.00	\$242.00	\$0.00
Unredeemed Liens Balance End of Year	\$8,080.00	\$8,141.00	\$413.00	\$2,090.60
Total Credits	\$14,164.00	\$10,851.00	\$1,398.00	\$2,090.60



# UNCOLLECTED 1996 PROPERTY TAXES AS OF 12/31/96

Ahlemeyer, Vincent & Margaret		\$240.00
Brown, Mary		\$2538.00
Buckley, Carl Betty & Juliana		\$2172.00
Buffum, Kenneth H. & Carolyn		\$2202.00
Carey, Dennis & Deanna		\$890.00
Caruso, Don & Nancy E. Johnson		\$7818.00
Davis, Gerald L.		\$2596.00
Davis, Philip Jr.		\$588.00
Forrest, Kathryn		\$177.00
Geddes, Paul		\$1002.00
Gordon, Irvin		\$178.00
James, Francis & Barbara		\$1485.00
Keating, Kenneth J. & Dorothy		\$3857.00
Martineau, Andre M. & Richard		\$2776.00
Robidoux, Lawrence & Marcia		\$3177.00
Rogers, Ray		\$378.00
Russell, Herbert E. Sr. & Susan N		\$4097.00
Seafield Pines		\$508.00
Shepardson, David & Virginia		\$2099.00
Tucker, Todd B. & Denise M.		\$2436.00
White, Mary Jo & Glenn L		\$3160.00
Yardley, Steven D & Jo Anne L.		\$796.00
Zoom City Sports		\$550.00
	TOTAL	\$45,720.00

Marika Stuhlsatz, Tax Collector

\_\_\_\_

\_

-

100

## TOWN CLERK'S REPORT

The following is the Annual Report of this office for the period January 1, 1996 to December 31, 1996.

Motor Vehicle Registrations	\$18,343.00
Dog Licenses	\$414.00
Dog Penalties	\$48.00
Marriage Licenses Issued	\$76.00
Filing Fees	\$5.00
Vital Statistics	\$12.00
Total	\$18,898.00

Respectfully Submitted, Marika Stuhlsatz, Town Clerk



## **ROXBURY PLANNING BOARD**

The Roxbury Planning Board had one public hearing on a proposed subdivision on Houghton Ledge Road. There has been no resolution at this time.

The Planning Board meets on the third Wednesday of every month at 7:00 p.m. at the Roxbury Meeting House. If you wish to be included on the agenda, please contact Barbara Neylan (352-4290) or Merry Stockwell (352-6383) ahead of time. The meeting dates for 1997 are: March 19, April 16, May 14, June 18, July 16, August 20, September 17, October 15, November 19 and December 17.

Respectfully submitted, Merry Stockwell, Secretary Barbara Neylan, Chairperson Fred White, Selectman Representative Dan Harrison Donna Mackey Seaver Gilcreast, Jr. Alternate Roxbury Planning Board

#### **TOWN AUDITOR'S REPORT**

This is to certify that I have examined the books for the Town of Roxbury for the year ending December 31, 1996.

I have examined the books and records of the Town Clerk, Town Treasurer, Tax Collector, Selectmen and Trustee of Trust Funds. I find that the books and records of the Town reflect its true financial condition as of December 31, 1996 to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Respectfully submitted, Mary Ann Kristiansen Town Auditor



# **REPORT OF TOWN TREASURER**

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1996

Recieved from Tax Collector:			
Property Taxes 1996	\$266,050.53		
Property Taxes 1995	\$28,954.00		
Yield Taxes	\$8,067.44		
Payment in Lieu of Taxes	\$22,350.40		
Other Taxes (Payments on Liens)	\$9,090.00		
Interest & Penalties on Delinquent Taxes	\$3,089.00		
Total Recieved from Tax Collector			\$337,601.37
Recieved from Town Clerk:			
Motor Vehicle Permit Fees	\$18,343.00		
Dog Licenses	\$414.00		
Dog Licenses Penalties	\$48.00		
Marriage Certificates	\$76.00		
Filing Fees	\$5.00		
Vital Statistics	\$12.00		
Total Recieved from Town Clerk			\$18,898.00
Recieved from the State of New Hampshire:			
Shared Revenue	\$7,028.12		
Highway Block Grant	\$21,968.57		
Flood Control Reimbursement	\$10,649.02		
Total Recieved from the State of New Hampshire			\$39,645.71
Revenue from Miscellaneous Sources			
Rents of Property	\$195.00		
Interest on Investments	\$1,044.20		
Other Miscellaneous Sources Not Otherwise Classifi	\$2,022.28		
Total Revenue from Miscellaneous Sources			\$3,261.48
Grand Total Recieved			\$399,406.56
Transfers In			\$100,000.00
Opening Balance 1996			\$128,678.76
		Subtotal	\$628,085.32
Less Expenses			\$501,632.59
Cash on Hand 12/31/96			\$126,452.73



NHDIP Investment Account		
Opening Balance	\$100,701.10	
Transfers Out	\$100,000.00	
Intersest Income	\$994.60	
Total of Investment Account		\$1,695.70
Capital Reserve Fund for Road Improvements		
Opening Balance	\$695.00	
Transfers In	\$5,000.00	
Interest Income	\$49.60	
Total of Capital Reserve Fund		\$5,744.60

Respectfully Submitted David Gregory

-----

# **REPORT OF TOWN FOREST FIRE WARDEN AND STATE FOREST RANGER**

To aid your Forest Fire Warden, Fire Department and State Forest Ranger, contact your local Warden or Fire Department to find out if a permit is required before doing any open burning. Violations of RSA 227-L:17, the fire permit law and other burning laws of the State of New Hampshire are misdemeanors punishable by fines of up to \$2,000 and/or a year in jail. Violators are also liable for all fire suppression costs.

There are ten Forest Rangers who work for the N.H. Division of Forests and Lands, Forest Protection Bureau. State Forest Rangers are available to assist communities with fire suppression, prevention and training programs as well as the enforcement of forest fires and timber harvest laws. If you have any questions regarding forest fire or timber harvest laws please call our office at 271-2217.

The State of New Hampshire operates 15 fire towers, 2 mobile patrols and 3 contract aircraft patrols. This early detection and reports from citizens aid in the quick response from local fire departments.

#### 1996 FIRE STATISTICS (Cost Shared)

FIRES REPORTED BY COUNTY

Belknap	06	Smoking	05
Carroll	07	Debris Burning	34
Cheshire	13	Campfire	16
Coos	10	Power Line	04
Grafton	12	Railroad	02
Hillsborough	19	Equipment Use	01
Merrimack	14	Lighting	02
Rockingham	15	Children	22
Strafford	05	OHRV	01
Sullivan	06	Miscellaneous	20
TOTAL FIRES	107		

#### **"REMEMBER, ONLY YOU CAN PREVENT FOREST FIRES!"**

Robert B. Stewart Forest Ranger Richard J. Donohue Forest Fire Warden

CAUSES OF FIRES REPORTED



#### **ROXBURY POLICE DEPARTMENT**

Complaints 1995	113	Man Hours 1995	338
Complaints 1996		Man Hours 1996	650

As you can see there was an increase of complaints received by this department this year as well as a large increase in the number of working hours. Much of this is due to a burglary investigation and problems that we had at Woodard Pond with college kids, such as illegal dumping, camping, abandoned vehicles, people consuming alcohol, fights, etc.

While tracking this activity we have taken a pro-active approach to these problems with increased patrols in those areas. The patrol time in general has usually been limited due to budget restraints. However, I found it necessary to increase patrols to curb the ongoing problem in the remote parts of town.

#### HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of the department this year include a serious assault at Woodard Pond, 2 stolen vehicles from Keene, which were recovered, one in a body of water the other was burned. Both vehicles were a total loss. We also had 2 children lost in the woods and 2 burglaries, one of which has been solved and the other is still under investigation.

#### NEW OFFICER

This year we were faced with an unplanned situation. The court system mandated that we have an officer stand by at a house while belongings were being removed. This is usually done by the Sheriffs Dept. due to it being a civil problem. Police Officers can only enforce criminal and motor vehicle laws. However the court mandated that we handle it this time. Other towns are being affected by this kind of mandate, and this is being looked into. The amount of time required to do this required me to call in an additional officer from another town for assistance. At this time the dept, was very busy. Then having the complaint load escalate the way it did. I found that it became necessary to appoint another officer. This officer comes to us totally certified and has most all emergency equipment needed. He will need uniforms and miscellaneous equipment. He also has a flexible work schedule, which allows great assistance in town coverage. His name is

#### ROGER TURCOTTE

Other towns are not so fortunate as us. Most towns have officers that work day jobs and are only available at night. And the state police have to cover day calls. They are spread dangerously thin and cover two counties. People may have a substantial wait for a trooper. We still handle calls 24 hours a day.

#### TOWN CRUISER

The cruiser is still the best asset we have. This year we had numerous calls in the wood and were able to get to them promptly. Also during ice and snow season we were able to get around to answer the accidents and burglar alarms in the remote areas. The cruiser is still in pretty good shape but needs a face lift. I hope to accomplish this during the year.

#### **6 WHEELER**

This vehicle has come in mighty handy this year. It allowed us to get to places we can't reach even with the 4-wheel drive vehicle. Chief Donohue has been a great help to us as he was patrolling the woods for illegal fires he as found other problems, which he has reported to me. It's a big help having another pair of eyes watching over the community.

### 911

The new 911 system has improved a lot this year, like all things new they had some bugs to work out. I want to make everybody aware that if you call 911 from your home the call will go to Concord and then to Keene which takes a short time. If you call from a cell phone the call goes to state police in Keene and if they have a trooper available they will send a trooper and not notify the Roxbury police dept. bare this in mind. If anyone has any questions about the 911 system please feel free to contact me anytime.

#### BUDGET

You will see that I have asked for another increase this year, this is due to not being able to predict the future. If the total hours worked are less than this past year, the additional will be turned back to the town. We now are finally getting up to standards and have most of the equipment we need. It's purely a precautionary measure.

### SELECTMEN

I want to thank the selectmen for their support this year as we faced many problems, which they assist with. They were very supportive of the Police dept. and its needs. And without their understanding this year we could have had more rural problems than we had. This meaning more increased patrols in problem areas.

### ROADS

My hat goes off to the selectmen and the highway dept. for a job well done. The accidents reported this year are down to a new low and the phone calls to the Police dept. referencing bad roads have stopped, again congratulations for a job well done.

If anyone has any questions or suggestions for the Police Dept. please feel free to contact us anytime.

Respectfully Submitted, Chief Neal F. Collier *Roxbury Police Dept.* 

# **REPORT OF ROAD AGENT**

With the coming of spring the dirt roads in town needed some exposed culverts covered. A new culvert pipe was placed on Hardy Hill Road. The usual grading of roads after winter was done. All town roads were ditched and the debris was hauled away. Parts of the Davis and Middletown Roads were shimmed and tarred. Potholes were filled on all tarred roads. Middletown Hill ditches were oiled.

Trash along side of the roads all the way through to Woodard Pond was picked up and hauled away to the dump on a regular basis.

Respectfully submitted, Steve Yardley, Road Agent

# **REPORT OF SCHOOL BOARD REPRESENTATIVE**

Monadnock Regional School District Assessment	
1997-1998	

	District	Roxbury	Percent
Average Daily Membership	2575.5	44.8	1.8%
ADM Assessment	\$15,778,617	\$284,015	1.8%
Equalized Valuation	\$562,403,219	\$12,564,058	2.2%
Capital Assessment	\$755,761	\$16,853	2.2%
Foundation Aid	\$1,248,563	\$12,868	1.0%
C	apital Assessment	\$16,853	
	DM Assessment	\$284,015	
Le	ess Foundation	(\$12,868)	
N	et Assessment	\$288,000	
'F	Y Assessment	\$274,077	
V	ariance	+ \$13,923	+ 5.0%

I would like to thank the citizens of Roxbury for supporting the modernization and expansion of schools in the Monadnock Regional School District.

Respectfully submitted, Glenn White, School Board Representative

### **REPORT OF THE HEALTH OFFICER**

Roxbury is still a healthy town. I inspected two new leach fields and had 1 complaint. I would like to thank the citizens of Roxbury for their cooperation.

Respectfully submitted, Glenn White, *Health Officer* 



# VITAL STATISTICS

### -BIRTHS-

DATE	CHILD'S NAME	PARENTS	PLACE OF BIRTH
01-07-96	Annika Rachel Kristiansen	Lawrence A. Welkowitz Mary Ann Kristiansen	Peterborough, NH

# -MARRIAGES-

NAME						
Shelley Lynn Ott						
Gerald Leslie Davis						

09-21-96

DATE

06-15-96

Julianna Buckley Fred Howard Field RESIDENCE Roxbury, NH Roxbury, NH

Roxbury, NH Roxbury, NH

### -DEATHS-

NONE

Respectfully Submitted, Marika Stuhlsatz Town Clerk



### TOWN OF ROXBURY ANNUAL TOWN MEETING OF ROXBURY, N.H. March 12, 1996

The meeting was called to order by Moderator Glenn White at 7:10 p.m. Selectmen Thomas Benson, Peter Stuhlsatz, David Gregory were present. Of 150 registered voters, 43 cast votes.

Selectman for Three Years: 39 votes cast. Thomas Benson received 38 votes. Michael Neylan received one vote. Thomas Benson elected.

Town Treasurer: 43 votes cast. Janet DeRosier received 43 votes. Janet DeRosier elected.

Tax Collector: 43 votes cast. Marika Stuhlsatz received 43 votes. Marika Stuhlsatz re-elected.

Town Clerk: 42 votes cast. Marika Stuhlsatz received 42 votes. Marika Stuhlsatz re-elected.

Auditor: 24 votes cast. MaryAnn Kristiansen received 21 votes. Remainder scatter . MaryAnn Kristiansen elected.

Trustee of Trust Funds: 18 votes cast. Fred White received 11 write-in votes. Remainder write in scatter. Fred White elected.

Sexton: 42 votes cast. Steve Yardley received 42 votes. Steve Yardley re-elected.

- Article 1: To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing year.
- Article 2: To raise such sums of money as may be necessary to defray town charges for the ensuing year and make appropriations of the same. Appropriations: \$20,500.00. Motion carried.
- Article 3: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$6000.00. for salaries and expenses of the Police Department. Motion made and seconded to amend this article to read: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$6000.00 for compensation and expenses of the Police Department and further that next years Police Budget include the insurance amount. Article passed as amended
- Article 4: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$250.00 for Town Welfare and Emergency Assistance of Town Poor. Motion carried.
- Article 5: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$600.00 for expenses and maintenance of the Fire Department. Motion carried.
- Article 6: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$300.00 for upkeep of the cemeteries. Motion carried.
- Article 7: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to borrow money in anticipation of taxes, and will vote the sum of \$2,000 for interest expense. Motion carried.
- Article 8: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$100.00 for a contingency fund. Motion carried.
- Article 9: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$13,000.00 for summer and winter maintenance. Motion was made and seconded to amend the article to read: "To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$18,000.00 for summer and winter maintenance." Article passed as amended.



- Article 10: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$248.00 to support the Mental Health Service Program of Monadnock Family and Mental Health Service. Motion carried.
- Article 11: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$21,968.00 for highway construction and reconstruction. Selectmen's Comment: These funds for expenditure are designated to the Town through the Highway Block Grant Fund. The appropriation does not affect your tax rate, but to be properly expended a vote is required. Motion carried.
- Article 12: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$300.00 as the Town's planning expenses and its share of expenses for the operation of the Southwestern N.H. Regional Planning Commission. These funds to be used for financing the staff, operation expenses, planning studies, technical assistance and other programs of the commission. These funds may be used in conjunction with other State and Federal Funds available for planning purposes. Motion carried.
- Article 12A: To see if the Town will vote to raise the sum of \$500.00 to join the Municipal Association. Motion carried. Discussion: Bonnie Insull volunteered to question the Municipal Association as to whether the Town should regard the Police Chief as an employee or independent contractor.
- Article 13: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$11,390.00 to be paid for recycling center privileges in the Town of Marlborough. Selectmen's Note: This charge is based on our use of the Recycling center and the cost to maintain it. Motion carried.
- Article 14: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$1,500.00 as its fair share of stand-by costs for the use of the City of Keene's Ambulance service. Motion carried.
- Article 15: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$6000.00 to purchase a four wheel drive all terrain vehicle for the Fire Department. Motion carried.
- Article 16: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$5000.00 to establish a Capital Reserve Fund to be used for improvements to the Towns roads. Motion was made and seconded to amend this article to read: "To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$5000.00 to establish a Capital Reserve Fund to be used for improvements to the Town roads and further to authorize the Selectmen to transfer, at their discretion, any unencumbered surplus funds remaining at the end of the fiscal year to this Capital Reserve Fund created under article 16 on March 12, 1996; and further to add to this fund the balance of the 1990 Reassessment Capital Reserve Fund." Article passed as amended.
- Article 17: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$428.00 to support the meals program of the Community Kitchen, Inc. Motion carried.
- Article 18: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$175.00 to support the Southwestern Community Services. Selectmen's comment: This amount represents 2% of the funds provided by S.W.C.S. to residents of Roxbury. Motion carried.
- Article 19: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of \$250.00 to support the Home Health Care & Community Services. Motion Carried.



Article 20: To transact any other business which may come before the said meeting.

Selectman Gregory suggested that next year we produce our own Town Report in an 8 x 11 format thereby saving the expense of an outside printer. General agreement on this idea.

Residents again enjoyed a Pot Luck supper before the meeting.

Meeting was adjourned at 9:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Marika Stuhlsatz, *Town Clerk* 

# SPECIAL TOWN MEETING

October 30, 1996

The meeting was called to order by Moderator Glenn White at 7:00 p.m. This meeting was requested by David & Diane Martin and granted by the Selectmen to act on the following warrant:

"To see if the town will vote to discontinue that portion of Phillips Road which lies within the boundaries of land of David G. Martin and Diane J. Martin between Middletown Road and the westerly line of Gale M. Russell and Dorothy J. Russell. (Phillips Road is a Class VI road which was previously discontinued subject to gates and bars by vote of the Town on March 14, 1939.)"

Points of discussion:

- 1. The Martin's septic system encroaches on a public roadway.
- 2. If a portion of the road were to be closed to the public, all abutters would have perpetual access.
- 3. The Phillips Road, also referred to as the New Highway on older maps as well as the Martin's deed, along with other Class VI in town are used recreationally by town's people.
- 4. It is generally inadvisable for a municipality to give up public access roads.

37 registered voters cast ballots. By a vote of 26 no to 11 yes the warrant article was defeated.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.

Respectfully submitted Marika Stuhlsatz Town Clerk

### ROXBURY VALUATIONS and PROPERTY TAXES FOR 1996 RESIDENT

			00000			
NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
ANTRIM, THOMAS & CAROL	_YN					
LOT # 3/169	5.10		\$182,150			\$4,667.00
BALLOU, RICHARD & SALLY	1					
LOT # 5/097/1B	2.61		\$128,650			\$3,296.00
BECK, MAE & H. MAMIKOMI	AN					
LOT # 9/008	9.50		\$186,150			\$4,769.00
BENSON, THOMAS & IRENE	1					
LOT # 9/010	2.30	15.00	\$57,250		\$50.00	\$1,417.00
LOT # 9/011	1.00		\$155,750			\$3,990.00
BLANCHARD, GLADYS M. &	AMOS M. JR					
LOT # 6/014	5.45		\$66,050	\$20,000.00		\$1,180.00
BROWN, MARY						
LOT # 5/017	1.70		\$99,050			\$2,538.00
BUCKLEY, CARL G. & BETT	YJ.					
LOT # 7/109	2.00		\$34,250			\$877.00
LOT # 7/018	0.20		\$61,377		\$50.00	\$1,522.00
BUCKLEY, CARL, BETTY &	JULIANA					
LOT # 7/D18A	2.00		\$84,773			\$2,172.00
BUFFUM, KENNETH H. & CA	ROLYN					
LOT # 3/019	2.40		\$85,950			\$2,202.00
BURROUGHS, RANDOLPH	A. & JANE A.					
LOT # 5/114	0.29		\$60,700		\$50.00	\$1,505.00
BURROUGHS, ROBERT & C	HERYL					
LOT # 1/016/2	2.50	196.24	\$154,450			\$3,957.00
BUSHEY, BERNARD P. & CL	ARA I.					
LOT # 7/136	12.90		\$190,800		\$50.00	\$4,838.00
LOT # 7/156	0.64		\$2,950			\$76.00
CAREY, DENNIS & DEANNA	(LAND BUCKL	.EY)				
LOT # 7/109A			\$34,750			\$890.00
CARUSO, NANCY E. JOHNS	SON & DON					
LOT # 3/051	2.79	15.01	\$305,150			\$7,818.00
CAVOLO, PAUL M. & ANN M	l.					
LOT # 8/038/1	13.20		\$150,400			\$3,853.00
LOT # 8/024	1.01		\$1,400			\$36.00
CHENIER, GEORGE & JUDI	тн					
LOT # 5/097/2	5.73		\$118,250			\$3,030.00
CLARK, RUSSELL P. & MAR	IE N					
LOT # 6/139	0.26		\$47,100		\$50.00	\$1,157.00
LOT # 6/140	0.06		\$1,350			\$35.00
COOKE, HAROLD JR. & FLC	RENCE J.					
LOT # 5/022	1.30		\$72,500		\$50.00	\$1,807.00
CORMIER, EOWARD J. & C/	AROL A.					
LOT # 6/143	0.42		\$91,800			\$2,352.00



NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
COTA, KAREN A.						
LOT # 2/066	3.80	60.00	\$103,000			\$2,639.00
DANIELS, ARNOLD N. & PAT	TRICIA L.					
LOT # 6/015	0.41		\$71,050			\$1,820.00
DARLING, JUNE F.						
LOT # 6/060	6.70		\$15,000			\$384.00
LOT # 6/036	0.93		\$3,150			\$81.00
LOT # 6/023	6.20		\$103,150	\$20,000.00	\$50.00	\$2,080.00
DAVIS, GEORGE L.						
LOT # 3/026	1.60	41.00	\$110,150			\$2,822.00
LOT # 3/027	1.00	76.95	\$47,200			\$1,209.00
DAVIS, GERALD L.						
LOT # 6/110	2.10		\$94,000			\$2,408.00
LOT # 6/111	0.60		\$7,350			\$188.00
DEROSIER, CLAYTON BLAN	NCHARD & JANE	T				
LOT # 6/005	1.00		\$76,300			\$1,955.00
DONOHUE, RICHARD J. & D	DORIS M.					
LOT # 5/020	0.83		\$63,350			\$1,623.00
DROGUE, LOUIS & GWEND	OLYN					
LOT # 2/058/3	18.50		\$172,700			\$4,425.00
DUPLISSIE, VIRGINIA L.						
LOT # 5/035	0.83		\$65,250			\$1,672.00
DURRANT, WILLIAM V. & V	VALLACE C.					
LOT # 5/133	1.10		\$92,100			\$2,360.00
ELLIS, EDWIN F.						
LOT # 3/040	30.80		\$142,600		\$50.00	\$3,603.00
LOT # 3/096/1		20.00	\$1,760			\$45.00
LOT # 3/096/2		6.30	\$550			\$14.00
LOT # 3/164		15.70	\$1,400			\$36.00
FRIEND, LAWRENCE M. & M						A4 404 00
LOT # 6/092	1.20		\$57,150			\$1,464.00
FUNK, MARK & ALICE						
LOT # 3/096/4	2.30	159.10	\$198,200			\$5,078.00
GILCREAST, SEAVER R. JR						<b>6</b> 0 0 40 00
LOT # 9/048	3.25	208.75	\$259,500			\$6,648.00
LOT # 8/049		23.00	\$1,600			\$41.00
GOODELL, ROBERT & JEN						£4,444.00
LOT # 5/067	0.33		\$56,350			\$1,444.00
GREGORY, DAVID A. & JEN			A			\$4,482.00
LOT # 5/038/3	5.70	(0) (0)	\$174,950			\$4,482.00 \$278.00
LOT # 2/056	5.70	101.00	\$10,850			\$278.00
LOT # 2/178		3.00	\$250			<b>\$0.00</b>
HAMILL, MARGARET	C 40		£4.40.200			\$3,825.00
LOT # 8/057	6.10		\$149,300			φ <del>0</del> ,02 <b>0</b> .00
HARRISON, DANIEL & SUS			\$400 400			\$4,673.00
LOT # 3/054	4.50		\$182,400			\$4,075.00



NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
INSULL, BONNIE S.	_					
LOT # 5/097/1A	2.50		\$89,550			\$2,294.00
KEATING, KENNETH J. & DO	RTHY					
LOT # 5/097/4	6.40		\$152,500		\$50.00	\$3,857.00
KNIGHT, ERNEST E. & SHEIL	AD.					
LOT # 5/047	0.34		\$73,800			\$1,891.00
LA BRIE, BRUCE A. & DEBOR	АН					
LOT # 9/053	4.00		\$110,500			\$2,831.00
LA PLANTE, ALLEN J. & SANI	DRA					
LOT # 8/150	6.00		\$106,250			\$2,722.12
LAMOUREUX, JOSEPH E. & C						
LOT # 6/012	1.15		\$113,900			\$2,918.00
LITTLE, GORDON H. & IDA M			• / / • • •			. ,
LOT # 6/087	0.46		\$46,600	\$15,000.00		\$810.00
MACKEY, DONNA M.	0.10		•			
LOT # 5/132	0.96		\$61,750			\$1,582.00
MARTIN, DAVID G. & DIANE			401,100			01,002.00
		15.00	£200 550			\$5,369.00
LOT # 3/013	5.60	15.00	\$209,550			\$0,000.00
MARTINEAU, ANDRE M. & RI			\$100 OFD			£0.776.00
LOT # 5/098	3.90	-	\$108,350			\$2,776.00
MASON, TIMOTHY T., DONN		1.				to 010 00
LOT # 3/096/1A	5.04		\$140,900			\$3,610.00
MC KEON, PEARL G.						
LOT # 6/090	0.27		\$66,550		\$50.00	\$1,655.00
MERCHANT, RALPH D. & CA	NDI L.					
LOT # 1/016/1	1.02	10.00	\$128,000			\$3,279.00
MOONEY, DAVID W.						
LOT # 7/100	2.64		\$132,600		\$50.00	\$3,347.00
NEYLAN, MICHAEL J. & BARE	BARA					
LOT # 3/120	3.90	3.10	\$166,600			\$4,268.00
LOT # 3/135		16.50	\$900			\$23.00
ROBIDOUX, LAWRENCE & M	IARCIA					
LOT # 7/103	1.52		\$114,400			\$2,931.00
LOT # 7/103/E	2.34		\$9,600			\$246.00
ROBINSON, MADELINE M.						
LOT # 6/105	0.98		\$77,500	\$15,000.00	\$50.00	\$1,551.25
ROUSMANIERE, JAMES A. JI	R.					
LOT # 8/149/2	2.57	23.00	\$218,650			\$5,602.00
RUSSELL SR, HERBERT E. 8						
LOT # 5/097/3	5.54		\$159,900			\$4,097.00
RUSSELL, GALE M.						
LOT # 5/115	0.25		\$6,600			\$169.00
RUSSELL, GALE M. & DORO			40,000			
LOT # 5/113/97	31.80		\$159,950		\$50.00	\$4,048.00
LOT # 3/044	22.00		\$1 <del>3</del> 9,900 \$44,000			\$1,127.00
SABOLEVSKI, JOSEPH B. & S			\$* <del>1*1</del> ,000			\$1,121.00
			£0.40.000			\$6,205.00
LOT # 3/027/1	11.70		\$242,200			\$0,200.00



NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
SALAMIN, STEPHEN C. & A						
LOT # 8/149/B	5.10		\$26,500			\$679.00
LOT # 8/149/A	1.09	19.80	\$209,000			\$5,355.00
SEBERT JR., DIANA M. & R		19.00	\$200,000			\$0,000.00
LOT # 3/042	4.56	15.07	\$80,850			\$2,071.00
LOT # 3/042/1	4.00	2.66	\$200			\$5.00
SPALTHOFF, RONALD L. &	YVONNE	2.00	4200			
LOT # 3/140	5.10		\$154,950			\$3,970.00
STARRATT, JEFFREY	5.10		\$104,000			40,010.00
	9.40		\$83,050			\$2,128.00
LOT # 5/038/2 STOCKWELL, DANIEL E. &			\$63,000			ψ2,120.00
	8.80		\$143,600		\$50.00	\$3,629.00
LOT # 3/041			\$143,000		\$30.00	\$3,029.00
STUHLSATZ, PETER M. & N					<b>***</b>	£2.400.00
LOT # 3/121	4.90		\$84,000		\$50.00	\$2,102.00
SUPRY, MICHAEL & KAREN						
LOT # 6/037	0.41		\$63,650			\$1,631.00
TARDIFF, DONALD & DREA	MA.					
LOT # 3/096/3	19.80		\$142,150			\$3,642.00
TRUDELLE, LESLIE G. & HE	ELEN V.					
LOT # 6/134	4.30		\$56,800			\$1,455.00
TUCKER, TODD B. & DENIS	SE M.					
LOT # 3/116	2.50		\$95,100			\$2,436.00
WELKOWITZ, LARRY & MA	RYANN CHRIST	TIANSEN				
LOT # 1/016/3	2.76	10.34	\$163,750			\$4,195.00
WHIPPLE, RICHARD L.						
LOT # 7/085		19.00	\$300			\$8.00
WHIPPLE, RICHARD L. & P.	ATRICIA					
LOT # 6/158	1.80	45.00	\$185,250			\$4,746.00
WHITE, FRED A. & CAROL	A.					
LOT # 5/145	0.28		\$36,250			\$929.00
LOT # 5/146	3,10		\$91,850		\$50.00	\$2,303.00
LOT # 5/086	0.17		\$58,800			\$1,506.00
LOT # 8/038/7	7.70		\$7,300			\$187.00
LOT # 5/034	0.64		\$9,600			\$246.00
WHITE, MARY JO & GLENN	1 L.					
LOT # 8/148	2.60		\$123,350			\$3,160.00
WILLETTE, CHARLES & LE	E					
LOT # 1/119	0.62		\$63,850			\$1,636.00
WILSON, KEVIN N.						
LOT # 3/004	2.50		\$37,300			\$956.00
YARDLEY, STEVEN D & JO						
LOT # 9/153/1	3.95		\$175,500			\$4,496.00
Lot # offoort	0.00		\$170,000			



#### ROXBURY VALUATIONS and PROPERTY TAXES FOR 1996 NON-RESIDENT

NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES		GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
AHLEMEYER, VINCENT J. &	MARGARET					
LOT # 1/001		106.00	\$9,350			\$240.00
, APPLE HILL MUSIC CAMP						
LOT # 2/185	2.00		\$0			\$0.00
ARNOW, DAVID						
LOT # 2/003	81.00		\$65,500			\$1,678.00
BAKER, JOHN P.						
LOT # 1/006		35.00	\$2,800			\$72.00
, BALD MOUNTAIN PARK						
LOT # 1/084	94.00		\$132,600			\$3,397.00
BERGERON, EMILE W.						
LOT # 4/147		21.10	\$1,850			\$47.40
LOT # 4/180		1.90	\$167			\$4.28
BURR, FRANCIS H.						
LOT # 9/144	7.20		\$18,700			\$479.00
COOPER, CHRISTA D. BENN	IETT & JAMES					
LOT # 2/029		147.10	\$11,750			\$301.00
LOT # 2/030		39.30	\$3,150			\$81.00
LOT # 2/079		12.90	\$1,050			\$27.00
DAVENPORT, STEPHEN & J	OANA					
LOT # 2/025	15.50		\$25,650			\$657.00
LOT # 2/179	33.00		\$41,100			\$1,053.00
DAVIS JR., PHILIP L.						
LOT # 5/038/4	6.00		\$7,800			\$200.00
LOT # 5/112	6.20		\$53,800			\$1,378.00
DAWES, ESTATE OF CAROL						
LOT # 9/031	2.50		\$82,950			\$2,125.00
DER MANOUELIAN, ARAM						
LOT # 2/033	34.60		\$39,300			\$1,007.00
EVERY, RUSSELL A. & BEVE						
LOT # 3/041/1	13.30		\$48,250			\$1,236.00
FORREST, KATHRYN						
LOT # 8/038/12	6.20		\$6,900			\$177.00
FRECHETTE, ERNEST W.						
LOT # 8/045	57.70		\$113,550			\$2,909.00
GAULIN, WILLIAM & BARBAR						
LOT # 1/152	1.80		\$127,300			\$3,261.00
GEDDES, PAUL						
LOT # 4/046	30.20		\$39,100			\$1,002.00
GORDON, IRVIN H.						
LOT # 8/052		87.00	\$6,960			\$178.00
LOT # 8/184		0.20	\$16			\$0.00
HAYDEN, NANCY PELL						
LOT # 9/059	124.00		\$145,700			\$3,733.00



INAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
HICKS, JOSHUA & PAULA M.						
LOT # 6/021	0.46		\$63,150			\$1,618.00
HOLLISTER, WILLIAM H. & MA	ARTHA					
LOT # 2/066/1		8.00	\$700			\$17.93
HOOPER, WILLIAM D. & MILDI	RED					
LOT # 5/061	0.64		\$47,200			\$1,209.00
LOT # 6/062	2.10		\$80,600			\$2,065.00
HOWE, DAVID E. & MARY B.						
LOT # 9/063	6.20		\$27,650			\$708.00
LOT # 9/064		93.80	\$6,800			\$174.00
LOT # 9/064/1	2.60		\$5,200			\$133.00
LOT # 9/107	1.40		\$16,800			\$430.00
JAMES, FRANCIS G. & BARBR						
LOT # 8/068	2.17		\$57,950			\$1,485.00
JENSEN, ERIK B.						aa 450 aa
LOT # 3/099	4.30	232.50	\$95,950			\$2,458.00
JEWETT, DAVID P. & CYNTHI			<b>14 40 000</b>			63 68 4 00
LOT # 9/153	5.40		\$143,800			\$3,684.00
JUCHATZ, WARREN C. LOT # 3/069	70.00		£02.000			\$2,511.00
KAUFER, DR. CHRISTOPHER			\$98,000			\$2,511.00
LOT # 3/166	64.30		\$60 GE0			\$1,784.00
LOT # 8/101	64.30 1.90	45.00	\$69,650 \$192,300			\$4,927.00
KENNARD, DAVID	1.90	45.00	\$192,300			ψ-,321.00
LOT # 4/141		52.70	\$2,300			\$59.00
LOT # 4/161		7.30	\$300			\$8.00
KENT, DAVID L. & SUSAN P.						
LOT # 4/142/1		12.70	\$450			\$12.00
KNIGHT, RICHARD						
LOT # 8/082		10.90	\$850			\$22.00
KNIGHT, WALTER JR & SARA	P.					
LOT # 3/083		36.00	\$2,300			\$59.00
MASON, HUGH DALE						
LOT # 4/089		87.60	\$5,600			\$143.00
MC MAHON, CATHERINE WIN	ITERS					
LOT # 8/091		127.27	\$11,400			\$292.00
, NEW ENGLAND POWER CO	ı.					
LOT # /LINES_1			\$5,726			\$147.00
PATENAUDE, NORBERT E. &	GENE E.					
LOT # 8/038/9	5.80		\$6,050			\$155.00
, PUBLIC SERVICE OF N.H.						
LOT # /LINES			\$97,861			\$2,507.00
REED, CHARLES & HERBERT	JR					
LOT # 4/102	58.10		\$44,100			\$1,130.00
ROBINSON, FRANK T.						
LOT # 9/106		32.00	\$2,560			\$66.00



NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
ROGERS, RAY			10	_		
LOT # 9/108	1.30		\$14,750			\$378.00
SCHULTZ, LOUIS A., JOAN	& MARK					
LOT # 8/038/5	6.80		\$6,200			\$159.00
LOT # 8/038/6	9.20		\$8,850			\$227.00
LOT # 8/038/8	5.90		\$6,150			\$158.00
, SEAFIELD PINES CORP						
LOT # 1/009		48.80	\$3,900			\$100.00
LOT # 1/117		43.00	\$3,450			\$88.00
LOT # 1/167	3.67		\$12,500			\$320.00
SHAW, CHARLES JR. & AN	IN G.					
LOT # 8/038/10	5.90		\$6,150			\$158.00
SHAW, CHARLES L. 3RD &	NANCY B.					
LOT # 8/038/11	6.50		\$6,900			\$177.00
SHEPARDSON, DAVID C.	& VIRGINIA R.					
LOT # 3/050	1.50	68.50	\$77,300			\$1,980.00
LOT # 4/028		58.40	\$4,650			\$119.00
, SOCIETY FOR THE PROT	ECTION OF N. H	. FORESTS				
LOT # 1/123		14.30	\$1,150			\$29.00
LOT # 1/130		539.00	\$43,100			\$1,104.00
LOT # 1/131		14.00	\$1,100			\$28.00
LOT # 4/032		49.40	\$3,500			\$90.00
LOT # 4/118		25.00	\$1,800			\$46.00
LOT # 4/182		20.10	\$1,400			\$36.00
LOT # 8/129		3.80	\$300			\$8.00
LOT # 9/088		100.60	\$8,050			\$206.00
LOT # 9/127			\$3,600			\$92.00
LOT # 9/128			\$1,100			\$28.00
SPALTHOFF, HARRY & RC	NALD					
LOT # 3/104		133.50	\$10,700			\$274.00
SPALTHOFF, HARRY, ROI	NALD, CARD, & L	ILLIAN				
LOT # 3/055		15.50	\$1,250			\$32.00
STUMACHER, ERIC & KAT	HLEEN					
LOT # 2/058/1		31.80	\$2,800			\$72.00
TAVES TRUST AGREEME	NT, ERNEST HEM	IRY				
LOT # 4/122	95.00		\$419,650			\$10,751.00
LOT # 4/125		80.00	\$6,650			\$170.00
LOT # 4/126		25.20	\$2,000			\$51.00
LOT # 9/124		82.10	\$7,200			\$184.00
UNKNOWN,						
LOT # 8/159	3.40		\$O			\$0.00
VITALE, BEVERLY J. LAKE	& JOHN J.					
LOT # 3/096/2A	6.80		\$29,250			\$749.00
WALLACE, GERALDINE J.						
LOT # 3/137		49.00	\$3,900			\$100.00
WALTERS, JOHN M., THO	MAS H., & JANET	۲.				
LOT # 2/138		51.30	\$2,750			\$70.00



NAME & DESCRIPTION	ACRES	CURRENT USE ACRES	GROSS VALUATION	EXEMPTION	WAR CREDIT	TOTAL TAX
WELLS JR., TRUST OF WE	LLINGTON					
LOT # 4/142		50.50	\$1,950			\$50.00
LOT # 4/142/2		3.75	\$188			\$5.00
WILDER, JAMES J. & LORE	N B. W.					
LOT # 2/058/2	4.00		\$3,200			\$82.00
, ZOOM CITY POWER SPO	RTS, INC.					
LOT # 8/160	12.50		\$21,450			\$550.00

